
Central Virginia Planning District Commission 
Meeting Agenda 
March 16, 2023, 5:00 p.m. 

CVPDC Offices – 828 Main Street, 12th Floor 
Lynchburg, VA 

Electronic connection: https://us02web.zoom.us/j/82032462604?pwd=SFNpbHQycEJDZDVZYzJXNEU2NmQrdz09 

Dial In: (301) 715-8592 
Meeting ID: 820 3246 2604 
Passcode: 459406 

1) Welcome & Introduction of New Members ............................. Dwayne Tuggle, CVPDC Chair 

2) Consideration of Requests for Electronic Participation .................................................. Chair 

3) Guest Presentations
a) GO Virginia Regional 2 Council .............................. Janice Crawford and Luke Towles 
b) Appomattox VoTech Center Development ................ John Spencer and Bruce Boone 

4) Meeting Minutes ............................................................................................................ Chair 
a) Executive Committee meeting, January 12, 2023
b) Regular meeting, January 26, 2023

5) CVPDC Housing Development Program Awards ................................................. Chair & Staff 

6) On-Call Service Providers Procurement Renewal ............................................... Chair & Staff 

7) Title VI Implementation Plan .............................................................................. Chair & Staff 

8) Organizational Reports .................................................................................................... Staff 
a) Financial Report, ME February 2023...................... .............................. Tonya Hengeli 
b) Executive Director’s Report ................................................................... Alec Brebner 

i. Facilities Update
ii. Legislative Issues

9) Personnel Update, FY23 budget amendment for recruiting services .................Chair & Staff 

10) Other Business ............................................................................................................... Chair 

11) Adjournment .................................................................................................................. Chair 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/82032462604?pwd=SFNpbHQycEJDZDVZYzJXNEU2NmQrdz09


3/16/2023 
CVPDC

3 of 49



Central Virginia Planning District Commission 
Meeting Agenda Brief Sheet 
March 10, 2023, 5:00 p.m. 

1) Welcome & Introduction of New Members ....................... Dwayne Tuggle, CVPDC Chair 
The Chairman will introduce new members appointed to the Commission subsequent to 
November 2022 elections by their respective local governing bodies. 

2) Consideration of Requests for Electronic Participation .................. Dwayne Tuggle, Chair 

3) Guest Presentations
a) GO Virginia Regional 2 Council (page 6)........... Janice Crawford and Luke Towles 
b) Appomattox VoTech Center Development .......... John Spencer and Bruce Boone 

4) Meeting Minutes ...................................................................................................... Chair 
a) Executive Committee meeting, January 12, 2023 (page 10)
b) Regular meeting, January 26, 2023 (to be provided under separate cover)

The Executive Committee met jointly with the Central Virginia Radio Communications Board in 
January. Membership of the Executive Committee is a subset of membership of the 
Commission. Those NOT on the Executive Committee are asked to abstain from voting on Item 
(4a). 

The request of Executive Committee members is approval of the minutes of the January 
12 meeting. The request of the full Commission is approval of the minutes of the January 26 
meeting. 

5) CVPDC Housing Development Program Awards (page 12) ........................... Chair & Staff 
Virginia Housing provided CVPDC $2 million to invest in creation of affordable housing in the 
Central Virginia Planning District. The Commission previously awarded $450,000 to Rush Homes 
for Florida Terrace in Lynchburg. CVPDC issued a RFP for a second round of affordable housing 
development proposals. We received nine applications totaling $4.2 million in requests for 
funding of new affordable housing units. Four members of staff employed a quantitative 
methodology to review and score each proposal.  

 Staff recommends four projects for funding at this time. These four projects seek 
$773,131 in sum. Staff would recommend a third round of awards late in 2023 for the 
remaining balance of the initial $2 million award.  

The request of the Commission is to make the following awards: 
• $189,241 to the Town of Altavista,
• $275,000 to Greater Lynchburg Habitat for Humanity,
• $158,890 to AHC Investment LLC (Church Street Townhomes), and
• $150,000 to Amherst County Habitat for Humanity.

6) On-Call Service Providers Procurement Renewal ......................................... Chair & Staff 

3/16/2023 
CVPDC

4 of 49



CVPDC relies on professional and technical expertise from a range of subject-matter experts in 
planning, design, and engineering to support its programs and assist localities. CVPDC 
furthermore offers this bench of on-call consultants to member local governments as they may 
require. Most recently, the Town of Bedford utilized a transportation engineering firm procured 
by CVPDC to assist with an application for funding to VDOT.  

 This contract must be renewed. Additionally, the Radio Board has identified needs for 
technical support for ongoing upgrades.  

 The request of the Commission is authorization to proceed with RFQs (requests for 
qualifications) for on-call consultants. 

7) Title VI Implementation Plan (page 14) ........................................................ Chair & Staff 
CVTPO maintains a Title VI Implementation Plan that serves as a policy document guiding 
compliance with federal laws governing equal opportunity and equity for public input and 
procurement. Greater Lynchburg Transit Company operates under this policy as a member of 
the CVTPO.  

 The Plan is due for updates. In research and preparation of a new document, staff 
learned the Plan must be adopted by CVPDC in its responsibility to house the TPO. Title VI 
applies to all federal funds. The Plan must go out for public notice and comment prior to 
adoption.  

The request of the Commission is authorization for public review of the draft Plan. 

8) Organizational Reports ........................................................................................... Staff 
a) Financial Report, FY23, 2nd Quarter (page 46) ............................ Tonya Hengeli 
b) Executive Director’s Report ........................................................... Alec Brebner 

i. Facilities Update
ii. Legislative Issues

Staff will present items that may be of interest to the Commission. Discussion is encouraged. 
No action is required. 

9) Personnel Update, FY23 Budget Amendment for Recruiting Services ....... Chair & Staff 
A sheer dearth of qualified applicants compels staff to request reassignment of $30,000 from 
the budget for personnel, saved due to an ongoing vacancy, to consultant services for 
recruitment of a transportation planner. 

The request of the Commission is amendment of the FY2023 budget for Expenditures in 
the amount of $30,000 from Salaries/Operations to Office Expenses/Contractual Services. 

10) Other Business ............................................................................ Dwayne Tuggle, Chair 
Commissioners may address the group with items of interest to the region. 

11) Adjournment ............................................................................... Dwayne Tuggle, Chair 

3/16/2023 
CVPDC

5 of 49



GO Virginia 
Region 2 Councilmembers & Presenters 

Janice Crawford has 39 years of experience with Framatome. Janice 
serves as Director, Safety, Security & Loss Prevention for Framatome. 
Appointed to this position in January 2017, Janice is responsible for 
leading Framatome’s North American Region in achieving best in class 
safety performance by developing and implementing cost effective, 
innovative health, safety and security strategies consistent with 
Framatome's global strategy. Janice is active in the region and currently 
serves on the board of the Virginia Chamber of Commerce, serving as 
an At Large Officer on the Executive Committee; United Way of Central 
Virginia; GO Virginia Region 2 Council; Lynchburg Regional Airport 
Commission; and chair of the Lynchburg Regional Business Alliance’s 
Air Service Development Partnership. Janice and her husband, Kelly, 
reside in Lynchburg and have two sons and two daughters-in-law. 

Luke Towles joined Pinnacle in April 2020 as the Lynchburg Area 
Executive and Commercial Financial Advisor.  He has 24 years of 
experience working with small, mid-sized and large businesses 
throughout Central and Southwest Virginia.  Luke works closely with 
his clients to create unique solutions to help the client obtain 
necessary capital and operate efficiently.  He works closely with his 
Pinnacle teammates to help meet the individual financial needs and 
goals for the owners and executives. Luke is active in the community 
serving on the boards of the Lynchburg Regional Business Alliance, 
GO Virginia Region 2, FCA of Virginia and the Academy Center of 
Arts.  Luke and his wife, Faith, reside in Forest and have three 
children. 

3/16/2023 
CVPDC

6 of 49



3/16/2023

1

GO Virginia Purpose Statement

“Create more higher paying jobs through 
incentivized collaboration, primarily 
through out-of-state revenue, which 
diversifies and strengthens the economy 
in every region”

GOVA Regions

Region 2 includes the cities of Covington, Lynchburg, Radford, Roanoke, and Salem; 
and the counties of Alleghany, Amherst, Appomattox, Bedford, Botetourt, Campbell, 
Craig, Floyd, Franklin, Giles, Montgomery, Pulaski, and Roanoke

Role of 
Regional Councils

 Direct growth and diversification plan to
identify needs and opportunities in region

 Ensure business leadership

 Prioritize projects for state board

 Encourage collaboration inside and
outside GO Virginia process

Region 2 Council Members

 Dr. Eddie Amos, GE Digital (Retired)

 Michelle Austin, Bank of Botetourt

 Dr. Nathaniel Bishop, Carilion Clinic

 Dr. John Capps, Central Virginia Community College

 Kenneth Craig, Liberty University

 Janice Crawford, Framatome Inc.

 Beverley Dalton, English Construction

 Sandy Davis, BCR Property Management (Retired)

 Paul Denham, Southern Air Inc.

 Dr. Michael Friedlander, VT Carilion Research Center

 Don Halliwill, Carilion Clinic

 Mike Hamlar, Hamlar-Curtis Funeral Home

 Vince Hatcher, Hollingsworth & Vose Company

 Dr. Patricia Huber, New River Community College

 Fourd Kemper, Woods Rogers Attorneys at Law

 Marty Muscatello, MM Consulting

 Kimball Payne, Berkley Group

 Debbie Petrine, Commonwealth Care

 John Putney, Bedford County

 Amy Sebring, Virginia Tech

 Dr. Ray Smoot, Virginia Tech Foundation (Retired)

 Luke Towles, Pinnacle Financial Partners

 Justin Yalung, IV Labs

Target Occupations and Industry Clusters

32 high-wage occupations, 3,716 annual openings
(projected 2021-2026)

These four interrelated clusters offer the greatest potential 
for sustainable, scalable, future growth in the region.

PJ0PJ1

1 2

3 4

5 6

3/16/2023 
CVPDC

7 of 49



Slide 6

PJ0 ad # of target occs in each cluster 
Provo, John, 2022-04-26T11:50:31.085

WQ0 0 Across industry clusters: 32 high-wage occupations, with 3,716 
projected annual openings. Better on the slide, or in notes?
Weber-Shirk, Quina, 2022-04-26T17:29:50.462

PJ0 1 this looks great
Provo, John, 2022-04-26T19:58:18.203

PJ1 Drop the sub clusters? [@Weber-Shirk, Quina] 
Provo, John, 2023-01-13T21:09:53.213

3/16/2023 
CVPDC

8 of 49



3/16/2023

2

Core Strategies to Grow
Economic Opportunity:

GO Virginia Region 2 by the numbers:

40 projects funded

25 projects completed

$7,967,735 total GO 
Virginia funds approved

$8,539,382.21 total
match committed

1900 jobs committed

1006 businesses served

691 jobs created/filled

590 credentials awarded

374 internships created

110 industrial acres
improved

GO Virginia Region 2 Data as of 1/20/2023

Types of GO Virginia Grants

Enhanced
Capacity Building

Regionally focused planning 
project, groundwork for a 
Per Capita grant

 Funding: max. of 
$100,000

 Duration: 1 year or less

 $150,100 in funds 
available

Per Capita

Regionally focused 
implementation projects

 Funding: over $100,000

 Duration: up to 2 years

 $967,718 in funds 
available

Statewide Competitive

Multi-region implementation 
projects between 2 or more 
GO Virginia regions

 Funding: over $1,000,000

 Duration: up to 2 years

GO Virginia Region 2 Data as of 3/1/2023

Project Highlights for CVPDC

Talent:

 Central Virginia Community College 
CTE Academy: CVCC

 *Bedford Regional Metal 
Workforce Retention Center: Town of 
Bedford EDA

 *Lynchburg Career Acceleration Program:
Beacon of Hope

Entrepreneurship:

 Workforce and 
Entrepreneurship Initiatives in a 
Regional Makerspace: Vector Space

 *Center for Entrepreneurship: LRBA

Sites:

 Center for Energy Research and Education
Industry Labs: Liberty University

 Additive Manufacturing Partnerships Labs:
Liberty University

 Amherst LYH Sites Readiness: LRBA

 Central Virginia Training Center: LRBA

 Lynchburg Site Readiness: LRBA

 Airport Commerce Park Regional 
Development: City of Lynchburg and 
Campbell County

Amherst, Appomattox, Bedford, Campbell Counties and the city of Lynchburg

Have an idea for a GO Virginia project?

Visit

Visit the Apply for 
Funds page on the 
Region 2 website to 
learn more

Meet

Set up a meeting 
with Region 2 staff to 
discuss your idea 

Submit

Submit a 1-2 page 
letter of interest to 
Quina Weber-Shirk

GO Virginia Region 2 Support Staff

John Provo
Executive Director

Virginia Tech Center for Economic and 
Community Engagement

jprovo@vt.edu

Scott Tate
Associate Director

Virginia Tech Center for Economic and 
Community Engagement

atate1@vt.edu

Rachel Jones
Project Coordinator

Virginia Tech Center for Economic and 
Community Engagement

rachelcj@vt.edu

Quina Weber-Shirk
Program Manager

Virginia Tech Center for Economic and 
Community Engagement

quina@vt.edu

7 8

9 10

11 12

3/16/2023 
CVPDC

9 of 49



3/16/2023

3

To Learn More:

Region 2 video

 https://cece.vt.edu/GOVAR2.html

Funded projects

 https://cece.vt.edu/GOVAR2/GOVirginiaFundedProjects.html

Apply for Funding

 https://cece.vt.edu/GOVAR2/RequestforProposals.html

Growth and Diversification Plan (2021)

 https://cece.vt.edu/content/dam/cece_vt_edu/govirginia_documentation/Semifi
nal%20Growth%20and%20Diversification%20Plan%202021.pdf

Thank you!

13 14

3/16/2023 
CVPDC

10 of 49



Serving Amherst, Appomattox, Bedford and Campbell Counties;  
the Towns of Altavista, Amherst, Appomattox, Bedford and Brookneal; and the City of Lynchburg. 

Central Virginia Planning 
District Commission 
828 Main Street, 12th Floor 
Lynchburg, VA 24504 
Office:  (434) 845-3491 
cvpdc.org 

Date: January 12, 2023 
Time: 12:00-1:30 pm 

ATTENDANCE 
Executive Committee members: Chairman Dwayne Tuggle, Sarah McGuffin, Frank Rogers, 
Terry McGhee, Jeremy Bryant, Robert Hiss, Wynter Benda, John Spencer 

Central Virginia Radio Communications Board members: Melissa Foster, Bradley Beam, 
Tracy Fairchild, Shannon Walker, Judson Smith 

Staff: Alec Brebner, Kelly Hitchcock, and Kirsten Trautman 

1. Welcome and Introductions

Dwayne Tuggle welcomed everyone from both the Radio Board and the Executive
Committee.

2. Closed Session

Dwayne Tuggle asked if there was a motion to go into a closed session for the discussion
or consideration of the acquisition of real property for the public purpose of radio
communications where discussion in an opening meeting would adversely affect the
bargaining position or negotiating strategy of the Commission under Virginia Code 2.2-
3711 (A) (3).

Frank Rogers made the motion and Sarah McGuffin seconded it.

A roll-call vote was then taken. Voting “aye:”
Frank Rogers
Sarah McGuffin
Wynter Benda
Robert Hiss
Jeremy Bryant
John Spencer

All were in agreement. The meeting went into closed session.

After an amount of time, the meeting opened, to which, Dwayne Tuggle asked if there
was a motion that the Executive Committee certify that, to the best of each member’s
knowledge: (1) only public business matters lawfully exempted from open meeting

3/16/2023 
CVPDC

11 of 49



2 

requirements, and (2) only such public business matters as were identified in the motion 
by which the closed meeting was convened were heard, discussed, or considered in the 
meeting by the Executive Committee.  

A roll-call vote was then taken. 
Frank Rogers 
Sarah McGuffin 
Wynter Benda 
Robert Hiss 
Jeremy Bryant 
John Spencer  
Dwayne Tuggle 

All were in agreement. 

3. Adjournment

With no other business that needed to be address, Dwayne asked for a motion to adjourn
the meeting.

Wynter Benda made the motion and Jeremy Bryant seconded it.

The meeting was adjourned.

X _________________________________________ X ____________________________ 
Chairman Dwayne Tuggle Secretary Alec Brebner 

3/16/2023 
CVPDC

12 of 49



CVPDC Housing Development Program – Grant Award Consideration 

Purpose:   
Request Commission approval consideration for award of a portion of the CVPDC Housing Development 
Program funds to support affordable housing development.   

Program Overview: 
In July 2021, Virginia Housing (formerly known as VHDA) awarded $40 million in grants to Virginia’s 21 
Planning District Commissions for the purpose of expanding new affordable housing units across the 
Commonwealth.    

CVPDC was awarded $2,000,000 in program funding with an assurance of full award via completion of at 
least 20 units by July 30, 2024.  This funding is targeted to be awarded to provide gap financing to 
support area housing partners develop affordable units. 

At its September 16, 2021, meeting, the Commission approved a $450,000 award to RUSH Homes 
towards the completion of Florida Terrace, a 31-unit facility providing affordable and accessible rental 
units to individuals and families with special needs.  Located on Florida Avenue in Lynchburg, Florida 
Terrace is currently under construction and 85% of the $450,000 awarded construction funds have been 
dispersed with the remainder to come in April 2023.  

First Request for Application Round  
The CVPDC Housing Development Program Request for Application (RFA) was issued December 21, 
2022, with application proposals due February 3, 2023.   

Nine applications totaling $4,195,974 in funding requests from seven different entities were received. 
Project applicants include local government, non-profit, and private for-profit developers. Six of the nine 
applications targeted projects in the city of Lynchburg, one in the Town of Altavista, and two Amherst 
County (one county, one town).  The quality of applications and the scope of projects submitted – from 
new single-family, owner-occupied homes, to land purchase for future home development, to adaptive 
reuse, multifamily rental units – made the evaluation process difficult.   Not only were the applications 
compelling but there was a mix of City, suburban, rural and town project locations, correctly reflecting 
the need for affordable housing throughout our region.    

After application review, based on the evaluation criteria as presented in the RFA, staff recommends 
awards of four (4) projects totaling $773,131.00.   All of the awarded projects had an average application 
rating of 84.25 or better.   Two of the four projects are located in the City of Lynchburg, one creating five 
new owner-occupied units and one creating six attached residential rental units.  One project creating 
three owner-occupied housing units is located in the Town of Altavista. The last project is funding to 
assist with two owner-occupied housing units that will be located in the Town of Amherst.  

A summary of the nine applications, with the staff-recommended projects shown in red, is provided 
below.   

Staff Recommendation:  CVPDC approval award of $773,131.00 in the CVPDC Housing Development 
Program funds.  With awards being distributed to:  $275,000 Greater Lynchburg Habitat for Humanity; 
$189,241 Town of Altavista; $150,000 Amherst County Habitat for Humanity; and $158,890 AHC 

3/16/2023 
CVPDC

13 of 49



Investments LLC.   Further, staff request the Commission support staff in moving forward with grant 
program contractual agreements.  

CVPDC Regional Housing Market Analysis 
The CVPDC, as a result of a $100,000 Virginia Housing Community Impact Grant (CIG), is undertaking the 
CVPDC Regional Housing Market Analysis study.  HousingForward Virginia, a statewide housing policy 
and research agency, was procured to lead this study.  To date, meetings with local staff and four (4) 
focus groups – Realtors, Builders, Employers and Housing Service Providers - have been held.   The Draft 
study will be provided to the CVPDC this summer.  A CVPDC Housing Market Analysis Study – Review of 
Past Studies and Plans, a summary of regional plans that articulates common themes from the region is 
available at: https://www.cvpdc.org/images/CVPDC_-_Review_of_Past_Studies_and_Plans.pdf. 

Total Request 
Amount

General Structure 
Request

Request per 
Structure 

Combined Score Compelling Factors 

Lynchburg 

Altavista

Lynchburg

Amherst County

Amherst Town

Unknown

Lynchburg

Lynchburg

Lynchburg 

REQUEST FOR APPLICATION
CVPDC - Housing Development Program

APPLICATION SUBMISSION SUMMARY SHEET 

Primary: 63     Secondary: 
27.75

Primary: 84.25  
Secondary: 15.5

Primary: 76.5  Secondary: 
14

Creates Homeownership; Families 40% to 
60% AMI;  31% total project costs; 

readiness

Creates Homeownership; Rural/Town 
location; 28% of project total project costs; 

readiness

Creates Homeownership; Rural/Town  
location; 35% of project costs; readiness

Family affordable rental units; 8% of total 
project costs; some < 80% AMI; location to 

valuable family amenities 

General Grant Request Summary 

Lack of committed partnership funding 
readiness (39% of funding not committed)

Readiness;  land not identified

Readiness; land not identified

Readiness, CVPDC 80% of project  funds

Affordable rental units; good location; 
more single person; % of CVPDC funds for 

impact

$450,000 Adaptive reuse,         
14 rental units

$85,000 per 
home

Location

Primary: 95.75  
Secondary: 29.7

Primary: 96.25  
Secondary: 21.5

Primary: 67.25  
Secondary: 15.5

Primary: 67.5  Secondary: 
28.25

Primary: 93.75  
Secondary: 29.5

Primary: 36.75  
Secondary: 18

$55,000 per 
home 

Build 5 owner-
occupied homes  

~$63,080 per 
home $189,241 

Build 3 owner-
occupied homes

$472,843
adaptive reuse;           
8 rental units (added 

to 28 market rate) 

10 owner-occupied 
homes 

$130,000 per 
home 

~ $59, 105 
per unit

$85,000 per unit 10 new homes

$158,890 adaptive reuse;           
6 rental units

~ $26,482 per 
unit 

$1.3 million

Linkits, LLC

$350,000 6 to 12  owner-
occupied homes

$75,000 per 
home 

$275,000 

$150,000 
2  owner-occupied 

homes

$32,143 per 
rental unit

not clear

FAR Foundation Inc; 
DBA The Lighthouse

AHC Investments 
LLC *

Amherst County 
Habitat for Humanity

Amherst County 
Habitat for 
Humanity *

5th Street Legacy, 
LLC

AHC Investments LLC

Habitat for 
Humanity Greater 

Lynchburg *

Town of Altavista *

Company/Agency 
Name

3/16/2023 
CVPDC

14 of 49

https://www.cvpdc.org/images/CVPDC_-_Review_of_Past_Studies_and_Plans.pdf


 

Central Virginia Planning District Commission (CVPDC) 

Title VI Implementation Plan 
DRAFT March, 2023 

 

Abstract 
The Central Virginia Planning District Commission (CVPDC) Title VI Implementation Plan articulates the 
adopted measures which are undertaken to ensure compliance with the Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 
1964 which prohibits discrimination on the basis of race, color, or national origin.  As an agency which 
receives federal financial assistance the CVPDC is subject to and must comply with Title VI.  The CVPDC, to 
include all organizations and programs it staffs or funds, including the Central Virginia Transportation 
Planning Organization (CVTPO), will utilize the CVPDC Title VI Implementation Plan to guide program 
execution.   

3/16/2023 
CVPDC

15 of 49



CVPDC Title VI Policy 
As provided by Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and the Civil Rights Restoration Act of 1987 

(Public Law 100.259), the CVPDC assures that no person shall, on the grounds of race, color, or 

national origin, be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be otherwise 

subjected to discrimination under any program or activity.   Further, the CVPDC commits to taking 

every effort to ensure nondiscrimination in the execution of all programs and activities, regardless 

of funding origin.   The CVPDC, in the event of distribution of federal funds to other agencies, shall 

include Title VI language, to include compliance procedures, in all written agreements.  

Acknowledgments 

The CVPDC acknowledges and thanks the assistance from the Thomas Jefferson Planning District 

Commission and the Virginia Association of Metropolitan Planning Organization.  This document 

was prepared in cooperation with the Virginia Department of Transportation (VDOT), the Virginia 

Department of Rail and Public Transit (VDRPT), Greater Lynchburg Transit Company (GLTC), and the 

Federal Transit Administration (FTA).  The contents do not necessarily reflect the official views or 

policies of the VDOT, VDRPT, GLTC or FTA.   

3/16/2023 
CVPDC

16 of 49



Table of Contents 

Overview ................................................................................................................................................. 1 

1. Title VI Program ............................................................................................................................... 2 

1.1  Communications and Public Participation ....................................................................................... 3 

1.2  Planning and Programming ............................................................................................................. 4 

1.3  Consultant Contract ......................................................................................................................... 4 

 Disadvantaged Business Enterprise ................................................................................................ 4 

1.4  Education and Training .................................................................................................................... 5 

2.  Limited English Proficiency .............................................................................................................. 5 

2.1  Statement of Commitment ............................................................................................................. 5 

2.2  Implementation ............................................................................................................................... 6 

  Limited English Proficiency (LEP) Encounter .................................................................................. 6 

  Routine LEP Implementation Activities .......................................................................................... 6 

2.3  Monitoring and Updating ................................................................................................................ 7 

  Four-Factor Analysis ....................................................................................................................... 7 

3.  Coordinators .................................................................................................................................... 8 

4.  Discrimination Complaints ............................................................................................................... 9 

4.1  Eligibility........................................................................................................................................... 9 

4.2  Filing a Complaint ............................................................................................................................ 9 

4.3  Complaint Processing ...................................................................................................................... 9 

Appendix A:  Title VI ............................................................................................................................. 10 

Appendix B:  Non-Discrimination Statement ....................................................................................... 11 

Appendix C:  Certificate of Assurance  ................................................................................................. 12 

Appendix D:  Procedures for Conducting CVPDC Title VI Program Reviews ........................................ 21 

Appendix E:   Procedures for Conducting Title VI Review of Sub-recipients ........................................ 23 

Appendix F:  Discrimination Complaint Form....................................................................................... 24 

Appendix G:  Resolutions of Adoptions ................................................................................................ 28 

3/16/2023 
CVPDC

17 of 49



CVPDC Title VI Implementation Plan 

1 | P a g e

Overview 

Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 prohibit discrimination on the basis of race, color, or national 
origin by agencies that receive federal financial assistance (see Appendix A:  Title VI).   The CVPDC, and 
all of its programs, as recipients of federal funding do not discriminate on the basis of race, color, or 
national origin (see Appendix B:  Non-Discrimination Statement).   

The CVPDC Title VI Implementation Plan articulates the adopted actions which will be enacted by 
CVPDC, to include all of its programs and projects, to ensure compliance with Title VI in four sections: 

1. Title VI Programs;
2. Limited English Proficiency;
3. Coordinators; and
4. Discrimination Complaints.

The Title VI Implementation Plan outline the process by which the CVPDC will ensure nondiscrimination 
in program communication, public participation, planning and programming, consultant contracts, and 
education and training.  Limited English Proficiency (LEP) describes that statement of commitment to 
LEP persons, implementation of LEP activities, and monitoring and update of LEP procedures.  The 
relevant agency staff that will guide and oversee the program are the Title VI Manager and the ADA 
Coordinator.   Discrimination Complaints (see Section 4) describes the complaint procedures.  

The CVPDC Title VI Implementation Plan serves as the CVPDC policy insurance that Title VI of the Civil 
Rights Act of 1964 nondiscrimination will be enacted in all programs and projects staffed or funded by 
the CVPDC.   The CVPDC is the contractual administrator of the Central Virginia Transportation Planning 
Organization (CVTPO), the Central Virginia Radio and Communications Board (CVRCB).  This Plan applies 
to the following programs: 

• Central Virginia Transportation Planning Organization (CVTPO)

• CVPDC Rural Transportation Program

• Chesapeake Bay Watershed Implementation Plan

• Hazard Mitigation Plan

• Central Virginia Radio and Communications Board (CVRCB)

• Virginia Housing Preservation Grant

• CVPDC Brownfields Program

Alec Brebner, Executive Director is responsible for oversight of the program areas listed above.  Brebner 
will work with the Title VI Manager to ensure that all CVPDC programs and projects are Title VI 
compliant through staff training, Title VI policies for the agency, and program reviews.  To ensure 
compliance, all agency staff will have access to Title VI relevant training and be made aware of the 
CVPDC Title VI Implementation Plan, its procedures and requirements.  

The CVPDC, in executing local or regional plans, coordinates with area jurisdictions, agencies, and other 
local stakeholders.  In doing so, plans that may directly impact minority or low-income communities may 
be executed.   The following procedures for conducting reviews of areas impacted are as follows.  The 
Executive Director or Title VI Manager will review the CVPDC programs and staff activities each Fiscal 

3/16/2023 
CVPDC

18 of 49



CVPDC Title VI Implementation Plan 

2 | P a g e

Year by meeting with agency staff to identify projects that need a 
Four Factor Analysis employed.  Each project manager will be 
instructed on how to complete the Four Factor Analysis and 
provided information of the Title VI evaluation tools.   With 
analysis completion the Title VI Coordinator will utilize the 
following steps to ensure compliance and non-discrimination on 
the basis of race, color, and national origin.  

 

1. Title VI Program

The CVPDC staff and the decision-makers of its organizations and programs, to comply with Title VI 
Compliance, will not discriminate on the basis of race, color, or national origin.   

CVPDC staff will evaluate and monitor compliance with nondiscrimination authorities in its: 

• Communications and Public Participation;

• Planning and Programming;

• Consultant Contracts; and

• Education and Training.

To comply with Title VI, the CVPDC: 

• Maintains current Title VI Assurances (Appendix C:  Certificate of Assurance).

• Promptly corrects any identified deficiency.

• Conducts regular review of program areas and contactors (Appendix D).

• Reviews sub-recipients Title VI procedures on a regular basis (Appendix E).

• Documents and prepares reports of Title VI efforts on a regular basis.

• The CVPDC Executive Director designates a Title VI Manager (Section 3).

Limited English Proficiency (LEP) 
Four Factor Analysis  

Factors to ensure meaningful access to programs and 
activities by LEP persons.  The following outline the 
four factors that ensure fact-dependent and 
independent evaluation that balances response are 
employed to ensure Title VI nondiscrimination 
compliance.   

The four factors are: 
1. Number or proportion of LEP persons served or

encountered in the eligible service population 
(“served or encountered” include persons who
would be served or encountered if those 
persons received adequate education and 
outreach, to include sufficient language 
services).  Utilization of data tools (e.g. Census)
must be employed to evaluate this factor.

2. The frequency with which LEP persons come 
into contact with the program.

3. The nature and importance of the program,
activity, or service provided by the program.

4. The resources available and costs to the 
recipient.

Insert map example here 

3/16/2023 
CVPDC

19 of 49



CVPDC Title VI Implementation Plan 

3 | P a g e

1.1 Communications and Public Participation 
CVPDC endeavors to communicate with and provide opportunities for minority, low-income, and 
disabled person to participate.  The Central Virginia Transportation Planning Organization (CVTPO), 
which is staffed by the CVPDC, maintains a Public Participation Plan that describes the process by which 
it consults with interested and affected individuals, organizations, agencies, and governmental entities 
and includes them in the decision-making process.  The CVTPO Public Participation Plan and all other 
CVPDC public participation opportunities and organizations and programs its staffs comply with Title VI 
requirements.  

To ensure Title VI compliance in communications and public participation, CVPDC staff will: 

• Include contact information for people needing accommodations in notifications for public
participation opportunities.

• Post the Title VI Policy on CVPDC program website(s).

• Include the following statement in public notices:

“CVPDC fully complies with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 in all programs and activities.  
CVPDC provides reasonable accommodations for persons who require special assistance to 
participate in public involvement opportunities.  For more information, or to obtain a 
Discrimination Compliant Form, contact (434) 845-3491 or www.cvpdc.org.”  

• Provide reasonable accommodations for persons who require special assistance to participate in
public involvement opportunities.

• Collect and monitor demographic data during public input opportunities, conducing additional
target outreach if the data show a deficiency in public input from particular groups.

• Recruit diverse applicants, including minorities, low-income persons, and disabled, for public
participation opportunities, to include serving on program and project committees.

Insert image here 

3/16/2023 
CVPDC

20 of 49

http://www.cvpdc.org/


CVPDC Title VI Implementation Plan 

4 | P a g e

1.2 Planning and Programming 
To ensure compliance in planning and programming, CVPDC staff will: 

• Prepare and update publicity available demographic profiles of the region using current and

appropriate statistical information.

• Consider a high-level overview of benefits and burdens of CVPDC transportation project on

minority and low-income populations, using maps and geographic demographic data to

determine projects that could impact such populations.  Lead agencies in individual projects are

responsible for environmental justice analyses evaluations in executing programs and projects.

• Conduct an environmental justice analysis during the development of the Central Virginia

Transportation Planning Organization Long Range Transportation Plan, and other required

transportation planning documents.

• Evaluate programs to determine if there Title VI implications and interpret how agency or

program directives impact Title VI program areas.

• Include, as relevant, environmental justice aspects of performance measures in transportation,

and other programs as required, performance-based planning and programming.

1.3 Consultant Contract 
CVPDC is responsible for selection, negotiation, and administration of its consultant contracts.  CVPDC 
complies with all relevant federal and state laws in contract selection and evaluate and monitor 
consultant contracts for nondiscrimination compliance.  CVPDC will: 

• Ensure inclusion of nondiscrimination language in contracts and Request for Proposals.

• Ensure that all consultants verify their compliance with nondiscrimination authorities,
procedures, and requirements.

• Assist any recipient or sub-recipient found to be not in nondiscrimination compliance to resolve
deficiency status, to include writing remedial action plan.

• Review outreach activities to ensure small, disadvantaged, minority, women and disabled
veteran businesses are not excluded to participate in opportunities to compete for consulting
contracts.

The CVPDC, as a part of the Certifications and Assurances submitted to the Virginia Department of Rail 
and Public Transit (DRPT) with the Annual Grant Application and all Federal Transit Administration 
grants submitted to the DRPT, submits a Nondiscrimination Assurance which addresses compliance with 
Title VI, nondiscrimination in hiring (Equal Employment Opportunity) and contracting (Disadvantaged 
Business Enterprise), and nondiscrimination on the basis of disability.  In signing and submitting this 
assurance, CVPDC confirms to DRPT the agency’s commitment to nondiscrimination and compliance 
with federal and state requirements.  

Disadvantaged Business Enterprise 
Disadvantaged Business Enterprises (DBE) are for-profit small business concerns where socially and 
economically disadvantaged individuals own at least a 51% interest and control management and daily 
business operations.  African Americans, Hispanics, Native Americans, Asian-Pacific and Subcontinent 
Asian Americans, and women are presumed to be socially and economically disadvantaged.  Other 
individuals may quality on a case-by-case basis.   The U.S. Department of Transportation’s DBE 

3/16/2023 
CVPDC

21 of 49



CVPDC Title VI Implementation Plan 

5 | P a g e

regulations require state and local transportation agencies that receive federal financial assistance to 
establish goals for the participation of DBEs.   The CVPDC supports DBE program objectives: 

• To ensure nondiscrimination in the award and administration of Federal Highway Administration
assisted contracts.

• To create a level playing field on which DBEs can compete fairly for Federal Highway
Administration-assisted, and other federal agencies as required, contracts.

• To ensure the DBE Program is narrowly tailored in accordance with applicable law.

• To ensure that only firms that fully meet 49 CFR, Part 26 eligibility standards are permitted to
participate as DBEs.

• To help remove barriers to the participation of DBEs in federally-assisted contracts, to include
the Federal Highway Administration.

• To assist the development of firms that an compete successfully in the marketplace outside of
the DBE Program.

• To provide appropriate flexibility to recipients of federal financial assistance in establishing and
providing DBE participation opportunities.

1.4 Education and Training 
To ensure nondiscrimination integration within the CVPDC programs, Title VI education and training will 

be integrated within the CVPDC staff education and training.   The CVPDC Title VI Manager will: 

• Distribute information to staff, board and committee manager, and other stakeholders on

training programs regarding Title VI and related nondiscrimination authorities.

• Trail staff in Title VI nondiscrimination and implementation annually and with new employee

orientation.

• Track Title VI nondiscrimination training of staff and board and committee members.

2. Limited English Proficiency (LEP)

Individuals who do not speak English as their primary language and who have a limited ability to read, 
speak, write, or understand English are Limited English Proficient (LEP).   Language, understanding or 
using, for a LEP person, can present a barrier to accessing benefits and services, understanding and 
exercising important rights, complying with applicable responsibilities, or understanding other 
information provided by federally funded programs and activities.   LEP persons may be entitled to 
language assistance at no cost to them with respect to a service, benefit, or encounter.  

CVPDC provides LEP persons meaningful access to programs and activities by providing adequate and 
understandable information and executing reasonable steps to remove participation barriers.  

2.1 Statement of Commitment 
Meaningful access to LEP persons means ensuring the LEP persons can effectively communicate, and 

that comments and actions can be appropriately responded based on provided communication.  CVPDC 

will take reasonable steps to ensure LEP persons have meaningful access to programs, activities, 

services, and information that are normally provided in English.  Failure to ensure that LEP persons can 

3/16/2023 
CVPDC

22 of 49



CVPDC Title VI Implementation Plan 

6 | P a g e

effectively participate in federally assisted programs and activities may violate the prohibiting of 

discrimination against national origin per Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964. 

2.2 Implementation 
The following Implementation guidelines describe the process that should be taken when an LEP person 

is encountered or an LEP person request is made.  Routine activities to maintain LEP program 

information and training is also included. 

LEP Encounter 
When CVPDC, or program consultants, encounter LEP persons or request for language assistance, the 

guidelines will be used to determine what assistance can be provided. 

The language assistance services available to the CVPDC are: 

• CyraCom:  CVPDC has a Pay-As-You-Go account with Cyra-COM-On Demand Over-the-Phone

Interpretation (www.cyracom.com) service.  CyraCom maintains telephone assisted

interpretation capability for over 100 languages, costs on a per minute rate, and additional

service-for-fee written translation services.

• Translation services available through CVPDC’s CyraCom may be utilized.  Access and cost

information inquiries are directed to Kirsten Trautman, Executive Assistant, by phone at434-

845-3491 or kirsten.trautman@cvpdc.org.

The need for LEP services depends on the type of contract. 

• In-person Contract:  Use the Language Identification Flashcard, posted in the CVPDC entrance,

to attempt to identify the language spoken.  Enlist the assistance of staff and/or Cyra-COM

service to obtain the LEP person’s name and contact information.

• Telephone Contact:  Enlist the assistance of staff and/or Cyra-Com service as needed.

• Written Contract or Documents:  Engage translation service such as Cyra-Com.

• Requests for meeting translation:  Use Cyra-Com service or employ another translation service.

Cost alone will not determine whether a request is granted.  Language assistance services deemed 

appropriate will be made available at the expense of the CVPDC. 

• Request for under $100:  Will be granted.  For Spanish, a phone call that might last up to 30

minutes or a document that is includes one-typed page in English, exemplifies this likely funding

criterion.

• Requests for over $100:  Title VI Coordinator, and if needed the CVPDC Executive Director,

review based on the Four-factor Analysis (see pages 2 and 8) and grant if deemed necessary.

Routine LEP Implementation Activities 
The Title VI Manager will: 

• Post written notices on the website and/or in a public area regarding the right to free language

assistance for persons conducting business with the CVPDC in the most likely to be encountered

languages (as determined by the Four-Factor Analysis).

• Ensure that public notices and publications include statements that CVPDC provides reasonable

accommodations for persons who require special assistance to participate in public involvement

opportunities.

3/16/2023 
CVPDC

23 of 49

http://www.cyracom.com/
mailto:kirsten.trautman@cvpdc.org


CVPDC Title VI Implementation Plan 

7 | P a g e

• Maintain that language assistance resource list, updating with current resources.

• Ensure CVPDC staff and program consultants understand:

- The right to free LEP person language assistance.

- How to use the language assistance resources.

- To include information in public notices and publications that CVPDC provides

reasonable LEP accommodations.

2.3 Monitoring and Updating 
CVPDC will monitor, review through the Four-factor Analysis process, and update as needed, its LEP 
policies and practices.  Monitoring by the Title VI Coordinator will include: 

• Review the CVPDC activities on a regular basis.

• Document requests for translation services and encounters with LEP persons and provide
reports when requested.

Four-Factor Analysis 
The Four-factor Analysis is used to assess the need for language assistance services: 

1. Demography:  Refers to the number and proportion of LEP persons served and language spoken
in a project service area.

2. Frequency:  Refers to the rate of contact with service or program.
3. Importance:  Refers to the nature and importance of program/service to persons’ lives.
4. Resources:  Refers to available resources, including language assistance services.

The CVPDC staff will: 

• Regularly review demographic data based on the Four-factor Analysis.  If a language other than
English represents the primary language for greater than five percent (> 5%) of the population,
the LEP guidelines may need to be modified to accommodate communication needs.

• Collect and maintain demographic statistics on persons who are affected in their projects and
studies.

• Solicit feedback from locality social services departments and community-based organizations
serving LEP persons to evaluate how well its practices meet their needs.

Locality social services departments and community-based organizations serving LEP persons include: 

• Lynchburg Community Action Group

• Locality Social Service Departments

• Virginia Department of Social Services

The feedback solicited from these departments and organization may include: 

• Nature and importance of projects, studies, and activities to LEP persons and/or populations.

• The effectiveness of current language assistance measures in meeting the needs of LEP persons
and/or populations.

• Changes in the frequency of contact with LEP language groups.

• Changes in the availability of resources, including technological advances or financial resources.

3/16/2023 
CVPDC

24 of 49



CVPDC Title VI Implementation Plan 

8 | P a g e

3. Coordinators

The following presents the CPVDC Title VI Implementation Plan staff structure for the execution of 
program actions to ensure enactment of initiatives to ensure nondiscrimination as stated in the Title VI 
of the Civil Rights Act of 1964.   

The CVPDC Title VI Coordinator has access to the CVPDC Executive Director, the final arbitrator on all of 
the CVPDC program and contract activities. 

Title VI Coordinator 
Kelly Hitchcock, Deputy Director of Planning 
Central Virginia Planning District Commission 
828 Main Street, 12th Floor 
Lynchburg, Virginia 24504 
(434) 818 – 7604
kelly.hitchcock@cvpdc.org

Alexander W. Brebner, Executive Director 
Central Virginia Planning District Commission 
828 Main Street, 12th Floor 
Lynchburg, Virginia 24504 
(434) 845-3491
alec.brebner@cvpdc.org

3/16/2023 
CVPDC

25 of 49

mailto:kelly.hitchcock@cvpdc.org
mailto:alec.brebner@cvpdc.org


CVPDC Title VI Implementation Plan 

9 | P a g e

4. Discrimination Complaints

Any person who believes the CVPDC, or its consultants, has unlawfully discriminated against them may 
file a complaint.  The following complaint steps are presented to publicly present the procedures that 
the CVPDC staff will follow.   Included are the actions that a person who believes there has been 
discrimination may use, to include the CVPDC Title VI Discrimination Complaint Form (Appendix F), to 
register a complaint and ensure response to said complaint.   

4.1 Eligibility 
Any person who believes they – or a specific class of persons – were subjected to discrimination on the 
basis of race, color, or national origin in the programs and activities of a Subrecipient that received 
federal financial assistance through the CVPDC program primary recipient may file a Title VI complaint. 

4.2 Filing a Complaint 
A discrimination complaint form is available in the Title VI Implementation Plan as Appendix F, or 
directly at https://cvpdc.org/resources/TitleVIPlan.  A paper copy can be obtained at 828 Main Street, 
12th Floor, Lynchburg, Virginia or requested by mail.  Assistance in filing the Discrimination Complaint 
Form may be requested through a direct request to Kirsten Trautman at kirsten.trautman@cvpdc or at 
(434) 845-3491.

Per USDOT regulations, 49 CFR §21.11(b), a complaint must be filed not later than 180 days after the 
date of the last instance of alleged discrimination, unless the time for filing is extended by the 
processing agency.   

4.3 Complaint Processing 
Complaints, depending on the CVPDC program to which the complaint is directed, will be routed to the 
program corresponding State or Federal agency.  All incidents will be tracked to ensure a direct 
Complainant response is determined. 

All CVPDC and CVPTO transportation program complaints will be routed to the FHWA Headquarters 
Office of Civil Rights (OCR) for processing.  OCR is responsible for all determinations regarding whether 
to accept, dismiss, or transfer Title VI complaints filed against State DOTs or subrecipients of Federal 
Financial assistance. 

Complaints will be forwarded from the initial receiving agency through the Federal-aid highway 
oversight hierarchy until the complaint reaches OCR.  For example, if a complaint is filed with the 
CVPDC, CVPDC will forward the complaint to the Virginia Department of Transportation, which should 
forward the complaint to Virginia’s FHWA Division Office, which should forward the complaint to OCR. 

When OCR decides on whether to accept, dismiss, or transfer the complaint, OCR will notify the 
Complainant, the FHWA Division Office, the Virginia Department of Transportation, and the CVPDC.  

3/16/2023 
CVPDC

26 of 49

https://cvpdc.org/resources/TitleVIPlan
mailto:kirsten.trautman@cvpdc


CVPDC Title VI Implementation Plan 

10 | P a g e

Appendix A:  Title VI 

The Civil Rights Act of 1964, which ended segregation in pubic places and banned employment 

discrimination on the basis of race, color, religion, sex or national origin.  The eleven titles with the Civil 

Rights Act are: 

I. Voting Rights

II. Public Administration

III. Desegregation of Public Facilities

IV. Desegregation of Public Education

V. Commission on Civil Rights

VI. Nondiscrimination of Federally Assisted Program and Activities

VII. Equal Employment Opportunity

VIII. Registration and Voting Statistics

IX. Intervention and Procedure after Removal in Civil Rights Cases

X. Establishment of Community Relations Service

XI. Miscellaneous

Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 addresses nondiscrimination in federally assisted programs and 

activities.  The CVPDC Title VI Implementation Plan addresses the program actions to adhere to Title VI 

requirements, as required by any agency receiving Federal funding.  

Title VI states “no person” shall be subject to discrimination because of race, color, or national origin.  

Title VI further declares it to be the policy of the United States that discrimination on the ground of race, 

color, or national origin shall not occur in connection with programs and activities receiving federal 

financial assistance and authorizes and directs the appropriate federal departments and agencies to 

take action to carry out this policy.”  Subsequent nondiscrimination laws expanded the range and scope 

of Title VI coverage and applicability.  Executive orders and federal agency orders and memos clarify 

implementation of nondiscrimination policy. 

3/16/2023 
CVPDC

27 of 49



CVPDC Title VI Implementation Plan 

11 | P a g e

Appendix B:  Non-Discrimination Statement 

The Central Virginia Planning District Commission (CVPDC), to include all programs therein, give public 
notice of its policy to assure full compliance with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, the Civil Rights 
Restoration Act of 1987 (PL 100.259), and al related statutes.  The CVPDC is committed to ensuring that 
no person shall, on the grounds of race, color, or national origin be excluded from the participation in, 
be denied the benefits of, or be otherwise subjected to discrimination under any program or activity for 
which the CVPDC receives Federal financial assistance. 

Any person who believes that he or she has, individually, or as a manner of any specific class of person, 
been excluded from the participation in, been denied the benefits of, or been otherwise subjected to 
discrimination under any program or activity for which the CVPDC provides assistance, and believes the 
discrimination is based upon race, color, or national origin has the right to fil a formal complaint. 

The CVPDC Deputy Director of Planning is responsible for initiating and monitoring Title VI activities, 
preparing required reports, and other responsibilities as required by Title 23 Code of Federal 
Regulations (CFR) Par 200, and Title 49 CFP Part 21. 

If a complaint addresses a particular service provider, the complaint should be logged with that 
provider.  

For complainants who may be unable to file a written complaint, verbal information may be accepted by 
CVPDC at 434-818-7704 or in person,  

To submit a formal complaint or to request additional information on Title VI obligations, contact Kelly 
Hitchcock, CVPDC Title VI Coordinator, 828 Main Street, 12th Floor, Lynchburg, VA 24504; phone 434-
818-7604; email kelly.hitchcock@cvpdc.org.

3/16/2023 
CVPDC

28 of 49

mailto:kelly.hitchcock@cvpdc.org


CVPDC Title VI Implementation Plan 

12 | P a g e

Appendix C:  Certificate of Assurance 

The CVPDC Certificate of Assurance provides the confirmation of Title VI actions and procedures. 

The CVPDC Certificate of Assurance, which includes Appendices A through E, begins on the next page. 

3/16/2023 
CVPDC

29 of 49



CVPDC Title VI Implementation Plan 

13 | P a g e

Central Virginia Planning District Commission 
Title VI Nondiscrimination Assurance 

(DOT Order No.1050.2A) 

The Central Virginia Planning District Commission, (herein referred to as the “Recipient”),  

HEREBY AGREES THAT, as a condition to receiving any Federal financial assistance from the U.S. 

Department of Transportation (DOT), through the Federal Highway Administration (FHWA), is subject to 

and will comply with the following: 

Statutory/Regulatory Authorities 

• Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. § 2000d et seq., 78 stat. 252), (prohibits

discrimination on the basis of race, color, national origin);

• 49 C.F.R. Part 21 (entitled Nondiscrimination In Federally-Assisted Programs Of The Department

Of Transportation – Effectuation Of Title VI Of The Civil Rights Act Of 1964);

• 28 C.F.R. section 50.3 (U.S. Department of Justice Guidelines for Enforcement of Title VI of

the Civil Rights Act of 1964);

The preceding statutory and regulatory cites hereinafter are referred to as the "Acts" and "Regulations," 

respectively. 

General Assurance 

In accordance with the Acts, the Regulations, and other pertinent directives, circulars, policy, memoranda, 

and/or guidance, the Recipient hereby gives assurance that it will promptly take any measures necessary 

to ensure that: 

"No person in the United States shall, on the ground of race, color, or national origin, be 

excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be otherwise subjected to 

discrimination under any program or activity," for which the Recipient receives Federal financial 

assistance from DOT, including the Federal Highway Administration. 

The Civil Rights Restoration Act of 1987 clarified the original intent of Congress, with respect to Title 

VI and other Nondiscrimination requirements (The Age Discrimination Act of 1975, and Section 504 

of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973), by restoring the broad, institutional-wide scope and coverage of these 

nondiscrimination statutes and requirements to include all programs and activities of the Recipient, so 

long as any portion of the program is Federally assisted. 

Specific Assurances 

More specifically, and without limiting the above general Assurance, the Recipient agrees with and gives 

the following Assurances with respect to its federally assisted Highway Program:  

1. The Recipient agrees that each "activity," "facility," or "program," as defined in §§ 21.23 (b)

and 21.23 (e) of 49 C.F.R.  § 21 will be (with regard to an "activity") facilitated, or will be (with

regard to a "facility") operated, or will be (with regard to a "program") conducted in compliance

with all requirements imposed by, or pursuant to the Acts and the Regulations.

2. The Recipient will insert the following notification in all solicitations for bids, Requests For

Proposals for work, or material subject to the Acts and the Regulations made in connection with

all Federal-Aid Highway Program and, in adapted form, in all proposals for negotiated

agreements regardless of funding source:

3/16/2023 
CVPDC

30 of 49



CVPDC Title VI Implementation Plan 

14 | P a g e

"The Central Virginia Planning District Commission in accordance with the 

provisions of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (78 Stat. 252, 42 US.C.§§ 

2000d to 2000d-4) and the Regulations,  hereby notifies all bidders that it will 

affirmatively  ensure that any contract entered into pursuant to this advertisement, 

disadvantaged  business enterprises will be afforded full and fair opportunity to 

submit bids in response to this invitation and will not be discriminated  against on 

the grounds of race, color, or national origin in consideration for an award." 

3. The Recipient will insert the clauses of Appendix A and E of this Assurance in every contract or

agreement subject to the Acts and the Regulations.

4. The Recipient will insert the clauses of Appendix B of this Assurance, as a covenant running with

the land, in any deed from the United States effecting or recording a transfer of real property,

structures, use, or improvements thereon or interest therein to a Recipient.

5. That where the Recipient receives Federal financial assistance to construct a facility, or part of a

facility, the Assurance will extend to the entire facility and facilities operated in connection

therewith.

6. That where the Recipient receives Federal financial assistance in the form, or for the acquisition

of real property or an interest in real property, the Assurance will extend to rights to space on,

over, or under such property.

7. That the Recipient will include the clauses set forth in Appendix C and Appendix  D of this

Assurance, as a covenant running with the land, in any future deeds, leases, licenses, permits, or

similar instruments entered into by the Recipient with other parties:

a. for the subsequent transfer of real property acquired or improved under the applicable activity,

project, or program; and

b. for the construction or use of, or access to, space on, over, or under real property acquired or

improved under the applicable activity, project, or program.

8. That this Assurance obligates the Recipient for the period during which Federal financial assistance

is extended to the program, except where the Federal financial assistance is to provide, or is in the

form of, personal property, or real property, or interest therein, or structures or improvements

thereon, in which case the Assurance obligates the Recipient, or any transferee for the longer of

the following periods:

a. the period during which the property is used for a purpose for which the Federal financial

assistance is extended, or for another purpose involving the provision of similar services or

benefits; or

b. the period during which the Recipient retains ownership or possession of the property.

9. The Recipient will provide for such methods of administration for the program as are found by

the Secretary of Transportation or the official to whom he/she delegates specific authority to give

reasonable guarantee that it, other recipients, sub-recipients, sub-grantees, contractors,

subcontractors, consultants, transferees, successors in interest, and other participants of Federal

financial assistance under such program will comply with all requirements imposed or pursuant to

the Acts, the Regulations, and this Assurance.

10. The Recipient agrees that the United States has a right to seek judicial enforcement with regard to

any matter arising under the Acts, the Regulations, and this Assurance.

3/16/2023 
CVPDC

31 of 49



CVPDC Title VI Implementation Plan 

15 | P a g e

By signing this ASSURANCE, the Central Virginia Planning District Commission also agrees to comply (and 

require any sub-recipients, sub-grantees, contractors, successors, transferees, and/or assignees to comply) 

with all applicable provisions governing the FHWA or the Virginia Department of Transportation (VDOT) 

access to records, accounts, documents, information, facilities, and staff. You also recognize that you must 

comply with any program or compliance reviews, and/or complaint investigations conducted by FHWA or 

VDOT. You must keep records, reports, and submit the material for review upon request to FHWA or VDOT, 

or its designee in a timely, complete, and accurate way. Additionally, you must comply with all other reporting, 

data collection, and evaluation requirements, as prescribed by law or detailed in program guidance. 

The Central Virginia Planning District Commission gives this ASSURANCE in consideration of and for 

obtaining any Federal grants, loans, contracts, agreements, property, and/or discounts, or other Federal-aid 

and Federal financial assistance extended after the date hereof to the recipients by the U.S. Department of 

Transportation under the Federal-Aid Highway Program.  This ASSURANCE is binding on the Commonwealth 

of Virginia, other recipients, sub-recipients, sub-grantees, contractors, subcontractors and their subcontractors, 

transferees, successors in interest, and any other participants in the Federal-Aid Highway Program.  

Central Virginia Planning District Commission 

by 

Alexander W. Brebner, Executive Director 

DATED_______________________________

3/16/2023 
CVPDC

32 of 49



CVPDC Title VI Implementation Plan 

16 | P a g e

APPENDIX A 

Contractor/ Consultant/Supplier Agreement:  U.S. DOT 1050.2A -- Appendix A 

During the performance of this contract, the contractor, for itself, its assignees, and successors in interest 

(hereinafter referred to as the "contractor") agrees as follows: 

1. Compliance with  Regulations: The contractor (hereinafter  includes consultants) will comply with

the Acts and the Regulations relative to Nondiscrimination  in Federally-assisted  programs of the

U.S. Department of Transportation, the Federal Highway Administration, as they may be amended

from time to time, which are herein incorporated by reference and made a part of this contract.

2. Nondiscrimination: The contractor, with regard to the work performed by it during the contract,

will not discriminate on the grounds of race, color, or national origin in the selection and retention

of subcontractors, including procurements of materials and leases of equipment.  The contractor

will not participate directly or indirectly in the discrimination prohibited by the Acts and the

Regulations, including employment practices when the contract covers any activity, project, or

program set forth in Appendix B of 49 CFR Part 21.

3. Solicitations for Subcontracts, Including Procurements of Materials and Equipment: In all

solicitations, either by competitive bidding, or negotiation made by the contractor for work to

be performed under a subcontract, including procurements of materials, or leases of equipment,

each potential subcontractor or supplier will be notified by the contractor of the contractor's

obligations  under this contract and the Acts and the Regulations relative to Nondiscrimination

on the grounds of race, color, or national origin.

4. Information and Reports: The contractor will provide all information and reports required by

the Acts, the Regulations, and directives issued pursuant thereto and will permit access to its

books, records, accounts, other sources of information, and its facilities as may be determined

by the Recipient or the Federal Highway Administration to be pertinent to ascertain compliance

with such Acts, Regulations, and instructions.  Where any information required of a contractor

is in the exclusive possession of another who fails or refuses to furnish the information, the

contractor will so certify to the Recipient or the Federal Highway Administration, as appropriate,

and will set forth what efforts it has made to obtain the information.

5. Sanctions for Noncompliance: In the event of a contractor's noncompliance with the Non 

discrimination provisions of this contract, the Recipient will impose such contract sanctions as

it or the Federal Highway Administration may determine to be appropriate, including, but not

limited to:

a. withholding payments to the contractor under the contract until the contractor complies;

and/or

b. cancelling, terminating, or suspending a contract, in whole or in part.

6. Incorporation of Provisions: The contractor will include the provisions of paragraphs one through

six in every subcontract,  including procurements of materials and leases of equipment, unless

exempt by the Acts, the Regulations  and directives issued pursuant thereto.  The contractor will

take action with respect to any subcontract or procurement as the Recipient or the Federal

Highway Administration may direct as a means of enforcing such provisions including sanctions

for noncompliance.  Provided, that if the contractor becomes involved in, or is threatened with

litigation by a subcontractor, or supplier because of such direction, the contractor may request

the Recipient to enter into any litigation to protect the interests of the Recipient.  In addition,

the contractor may request the United States to enter into the litigation to protect the interests

of the United States.

3/16/2023 
CVPDC

33 of 49



CVPDC Title VI Implementation Plan 

17 | P a g e

APPENDIX B 

CLAUSES FOR DEEDS TRANSFERRING UNITED STATES PROPERTY 

The following clauses will be included in deeds effecting or recording the transfer of real property, structures, or 

improvements thereon, or granting interest therein from the United States pursuant to the provisions of Assurance 

4: 

NOW, THEREFORE, the U.S. Department of Transportation as authorized  by law and upon the condition that the 

Central Virginia Planning District Commission will accept title to the lands and maintain the project constructed 

thereon in accordance with the Virginia General Assembly, the Regulations for the Administration  of the Federal-

Aid Highway Program and the policies and procedures prescribed by the Federal Highway Administration of the 

U.S. Department  of Transportation in accordance and in compliance with all requirements imposed by Title 49, 

Code of Federal Regulations, U.S. Department of Transportation, Subtitle A, Office of the Secretary, Part 21, 

Nondiscrimination in Federally-assisted  programs of the U.S Department of Transportation pertaining to and 

effectuating the provisions of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (78 Stat. 252; 42 U.S.C. § 2000d to 2000d-

4), does hereby remise, release, quitclaim and convey unto the Central Virginia Planning District Commission all 

the right, title and interest of the U.S. Department  of Transportation in and to said lands described in Exhibit A 

attached hereto and made a part hereof. 

(HABENDUM CLAUSE) 

TO HAVE AND TO HOLD said lands and interests therein unto the Central Virginia Planning District 

Commission and its successors forever, subject, however, to the covenants, conditions, restrictions and reservations  

herein contained as follows, which will remain in effect for the period during which the real property or structures 

are used for a purpose for which Federal financial assistance is extended or for another purpose involving the 

provision of similar services or benefits and will be binding on the Central Virginia Planning District Commission, 

its successors and assigns. 

The Central Virginia Planning District Commission in consideration  of the conveyance of said lands and interests 

in lands, does hereby covenant and agree as a covenant running with the land for itself, its successors and assigns, 

that (1) no person will on the grounds of race, color, or national origin, be excluded from participation in, be denied 

the benefits of, or be otherwise subjected to discrimination  with regard to any facility located wholly or in part on, 

over, or under such lands hereby conveyed [,] [and]* (2) that the Central Virginia Planning District Commission 

will use the lands and interests in lands and interests in lands so conveyed,  in compliance with all requirements 

imposed by or pursuant to Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations, U.S. Department  of Transportation, Subtitle A, 

Office of the Secretary, Part 21, Nondiscrimination in Federally-assisted programs of the U.S. Department of 

Transportation, Effectuation of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, and as said Regulations and Acts may be 

amended[, and (3) that in the event of breach of any of the above-mentioned non-discrimination  conditions, the 

Department  will have a right to enter or re-enter said lands and facilities on said land, and that above described land 

and facilities will thereon revert to and vest in and become the absolute property of the U.S. Department of 

Transportation and its assigns as such interest existed prior to this instruction].* 

(*Reverter clause and related language to be used only when it is determined that such a clause is necessary in order 

to make clear the purpose of Title VI.) 

3/16/2023 
CVPDC

34 of 49



CVPDC Title VI Implementation Plan 

18 | P a g e

APPENDIX C 

CLAUSES FOR TRANSFER OF REAL PROPERTY ACQUIRED OR IMPROVED UNDER THE 

ACTIVITY, FACILITY, OR PROGRAM 

The following clauses will be included in deeds, licenses, leases, permits, or similar instruments entered into 

by the Central Virginia Planning District Commission pursuant to the provisions of Assurance 7(a): 

A. The (grantee, lessee, permittee, etc. as appropriate) for himself/herself, his/her heirs, personal

representatives, successors in interest, and assigns, as a part of the consideration  hereof, does hereby

covenant and agree [in the case of deeds and leases add "as a covenant running with the land"] that:

1. In the event facilities are constructed, maintained, or otherwise operated on the property described

in this (deed, license, lease, permit, etc.) for a purpose for which a U.S. Department of

Transportation activity, facility, or program is extended or for another purpose involving the

provision of similar services or benefits, the (grantee, licensee, lessee, permittee, etc.) will maintain

and operate such facilities and services in compliance with all requirements imposed by the Acts

and Regulations (as may be amended) such that no person on the grounds of race, color, or national

origin, will be excluded from participation  in, denied the benefits of, or be otherwise subjected to

discrimination in the use of said facilities.

B. With respect to licenses, leases, permits, etc., in the event of breach of any of the above Nondiscrimination

covenants, the Central Virginia Planning District Commission will have the right to terminate the (lease,

license, permit, etc.) and to enter, re-enter, and repossess said lands and facilities thereon, and hold the same

as if the (lease, license, permit, etc.) had never been made or issued.*

C. With respect to a deed, in the event of breach of any of the above Nondiscrimination covenants, the Central

Virginia Planning District Commission will have the right to enter or re-enter the lands and facilities thereon,

and the above described lands and facilities will there upon revert to and vest in and become the absolute

property of the Central Virginia Planning District Commission and its assigns.*

(*Reverter clause and related language to be used only when it is determined that such a clause is necessary 

to make clear the purpose of Title VI.) 

3/16/2023 
CVPDC

35 of 49



CVPDC Title VI Implementation Plan 

19 | P a g e

APPENDIX D 

CLAUSES FOR CONSTRUCTION/USE/ACCESS TO REAL PROPERTY ACQUIRED UNDER THE 

ACTIVITY, FACILITY OR PROGRAM 

The following clauses will be included in deeds, licenses, permits, or similar instruments/agreements entered 

into by the Central Virginia Planning District Commission pursuant to the provisions of Assurance 7(b): 

A. The (grantee, licensee, permittee, etc., as appropriate) for himself/herself, his/her heirs, personal

representatives, successors in interest, and assigns, as a part of the consideration hereof, does hereby covenant

and agree (in the case of deeds and leases add, "as a covenant running with the land") that (1) no person on

the ground of race, color, or national origin, will be excluded from participation  in, denied the benefits of,

or be otherwise subjected to discrimination in the use of said facilities, (2) that in the construction of any

improvements on, over, or under such land, and the furnishing of services thereon, no person on the ground

of race, color, or national origin, will be excluded from participation in, denied the benefits of, or otherwise

be subjected to discrimination, (3) that the (grantee, licensee, lessee, permittee, etc.) will use the premises in

compliance with all other requirements imposed by or pursuant to the Acts and Regulations, as amended, set

forth in this Assurance.

B. With respect to (licenses, leases, permits, etc.), in the event of breach of any of the above

Nondiscrimination covenants, the Central Virginia Planning District Commission will have the right to

terminate the (license, permit, etc., as appropriate) and to enter or re-enter and repossess said land and the

facilities thereon, and hold the same as if said (license, permit, etc., as appropriate) had never been made

or issued.*

C. With respect to deeds, in the event of breach of any of the above Non-discrimination covenants, the Central

Virginia Planning District Commission will there upon revert to and vest in and become the absolute

property of the Central Virginia Planning District Commission and its assigns.*

(*Reverter clause and related language to be used only when it is determined that such a clause is necessary 

to make clear the purpose of Title VI.) 

3/16/2023 
CVPDC

36 of 49



CVPDC Title VI Implementation Plan 

20 | P a g e

APPENDIX E 

Contractor/ Consultant/Supplier Agreements:  U.S. DOT 1050.2A -- Appendix E 

During the performance of this contract, the contractor, for itself, its assignees, and successors in interest 

(hereinafter referred to as the “contractor”) agrees to comply with the following non-discrimination statutes and 

authorities; including but not limited to: 

Pertinent Nondiscrimination Authorities: 

• Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. § 2000d et seq., 78 stat. 252), (prohibits discrimination

on the basis of race, color, national origin); and 49 CFR Part 21;

• The Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970, (42 U.S.C. § 4601),

(prohibits unfair treatment of persons displaced or whose property has been acquired because of Federal or

Federal-aid programs and projects);

• Federal-Aid Highway Act of 1973, (23 U.S.C. § 324 et seq.), (prohibits discrimination on the basis of sex);

• Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, (29 U.S.C. § 794 et seq.), as amended, (prohibits

discrimination on the basis of disability); and 49 CFR Part 27;

• The Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended, (42 U.S.C. § 6101 et seq.), (prohibits discrimination on

the basis of age);

• Airport and Airway Improvement Act of 1982, (49 USC § 471, Section 47123), as amended, (prohibits

discrimination based on race, creed, color, national origin, or sex);

• The Civil Rights Restoration Act of 1987, (PL 100-209), (Broadened the scope, coverage and applicability

of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, The Age Discrimination Act of 1975 and Section 504 of the

Rehabilitation Act of 1973, by expanding the definition of the terms “programs or activities” to include all

of the programs or activities of the Federal-aid recipients, sub-recipients and contractors, whether such

programs or activities are Federally funded or not);

• Titles II and III of the Americans with Disabilities Act, which prohibit discrimination on the basis of disability

in the operation of public entities, public and private transportation systems, places of public accommodation,

and certain testing entities (42 U.S.C. §§ 12131 -- 12189) as implemented by Department of Transportation

regulations at 49 C.F.R. parts 37 and 38;

• The Federal Aviation Administration’s Non-discrimination statute (49 U.S.C. § 47123) (prohibits

discrimination on the basis of race, color, national origin, and sex);

• Executive Order 12898, Federal Actions to Address Environmental Justice in Minority Populations and Low-

Income Populations, which ensures non-discrimination against minority populations by discouraging

programs, policies, and activities with disproportionately high and adverse human health or environmental

effects on minority and low-income populations;

• Executive Order 13166, Improving Access to Services for Persons with Limited English Proficiency, and

resulting agency guidance, national origin discrimination includes discrimination because of limited English

proficiency (LEP).  To ensure compliance with Title VI, you must take reasonable steps to ensure that LEP

persons have meaningful access to your programs (70 Fed. Reg. at 74087 to 74100);

• Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, as amended, which prohibits you from discriminating

because of sex in education programs or activities (20 U.S.C. 1681 et seq).

3/16/2023 
CVPDC

37 of 49



CVPDC Title VI Implementation Plan 

21 | P a g e

Appendix D:  Procedures for Conducting CVPDC Title VI Program Review 

Evaluation and procedural review are the foundation of the CVPDC Title VI Implementation Plan.  
Program review will be completed for all programs and projects receiving federal funds.  Per Federal 
regulations which state: 

All entities that receive federal financial assistance are required to create establish and maintain 
effective internal control over the Federal award that provides reasonable assurance that the 
entity is managing the award in compliance with Federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and 
conditions of the Federal award.  2 C.F.R. §200.303(a) 

Entities may not directly or through contractual or other arrangements, utilize criteria or methods 
of administration which have the effect of subjecting individuals to discrimination because of their 
race, color, or national origin, or have the effect of defeating or substantially impairing 
accomplishment of the objectives of the program as respects individuals of a particular race, color, 
or national origin. 49 C.F.R. §21.5(b); 28 C.F.R. §42.104(b) 

The CVPDC directly or indirectly receives federal funding through the following programs: 

• Central Virginia Transportation Planning Organization (CVTPO)

• Rural Transportation Program

• Transit Service Program

• RIDE Solutions

• Hazard Mitigation Plan

• Central Virginia Radio and Communications Board (CVRCB)

• Virginia Housing Preservation Grant

• CVPDC Brownfields Program

• Chesapeake Bay Watershed Implementation Program

• Region 2000 Services Authority

The CVPDC is committed to the assurance that all persons are provided equal opportunities to 
participate in CVPDC program activities regardless of race, color, ability or national origin.  Title VI 
requires non-discrimination based on race, color or national origin and the Americans with Disabilities 
Act requires entities open to the public to reasonably accommodate people with disabilities.   

The CVPDC program review procedure endeavors to ensure that all CVPDC programs and projects do not 
discriminate based on race, color, national origin or ability.  The CVPDC staff will use the Title VI 
Implementation Plan, to include accompanying statements, interpretation services as needed, and 
regular program reviews to meet this non-discrimination and accommodation mission.  

CVPDC programs operate on a July 1 to June 30 fiscal basis following a work program.  The Executive 
Director will review the CVPDC, to include all partners, work plans at the beginning of each Fiscal Year by 
meeting each project manager to identify projects that need the Four Factor Analysis.  During the annual 
program review, the Title VI Coordinator will review the Title VI Implementation Plan which includes: 

• Instructions to ensure non-discrimination in communications and public participation;

• Instructions to ensure non-discrimination in planning and programming;

• Instructions to evaluate and monitor consultant contracts for compliance with
nondiscrimination authorities and disadvantaged business enterprise goas; and

3/16/2023 
CVPDC

38 of 49



CVPDC Title VI Implementation Plan 

22 | P a g e

• Instructions for accommodating a person with limited English proficiency and limited English
Proficient requests.

The Title VI Coordinator will help the program manager identify program areas or project that need a 
Four Factor Analysis, the program manager will be instructed on how to complete the Four Factor 
Analysis and give Title VI resources.  

3/16/2023 
CVPDC

39 of 49



CVPDC Title VI Implementation Plan 

23 | P a g e

Appendix E:  Procedures for Conducting Title VI  Reviews of Sub-recipients 

Evaluation and procedural review are the foundation of the CVPDC Title VI Implementation Plan.  
Program review will be completed for all programs and projects receiving federal funds.  Per Federal 
regulations which state: 

All entities that receive federal financial assistance are required to create establish and maintain 
effective internal control over the Federal award that provides reasonable assurance that the 
entity is managing the award in compliance with Federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and 
conditions of the Federal award.  2 C.F.R. §200.303(a) 

Entities may not directly or through contractual or other arrangements, utilize criteria or methods 
of administration which have the effect of subjecting individuals to discrimination because of their 
race, color, or national origin, or have the effect of defeating or substantially impairing 
accomplishment of the objectives of the program as respects individuals of a particular race, color, 
or national origin. 49 C.F.R. §21.5(b); 28 C.F.R. §42.104(b) 

The CVPDC directly or indirectly receives federal funding through the following programs: 

• Central Virginia Transportation Planning Organization (CVTPO)

• Rural Transportation Program

• Transit Service Program

• RIDE Solutions

• Hazard Mitigation Plan

• Central Virginia Radio and Communications Board (CVRCB)

• Virginia Housing Preservation Grant

• CVPDC Brownfields Program

• Chesapeake Bay Watershed Implementation Program

• Region 2000 Services Authority

The CVPDC is committed to the assurance that all persons are provided equal opportunities to 
participate in CVPDC program activities regardless of race, color, ability or national origin.  The CVPDC is 
responsible for the selection, negotiation, and administration of consultant contracts and grant sub-
recipients.  This review procedure endeavors to ensure that CVPDC program and project sub-recipients 
do not discriminate.   

CVPDC staff, with guidance from the Title VI Coordinator, will evaluate and review consultant contracts 
and sub-recipient agreements for compliance with nondiscrimination authorities and will: 

• Ensure inclusion of nondiscriminatory language in contacts and Request for Proposals (RFPs).

• Ensure that all consultants verify their compliance with nondiscrimination authorities,
procedures, and requirements.

• If a recipient or sub-recipient is found not to be in compliance, will execute a plan in
coordination with the recipient or sub-recipient to resolve the deficiency status.  This includes
setting a timeline and course of action to resolve the matter.

• Review outreach activities to ensure accommodation to meet the needs of all persons
regardless of race, color, ability or national origin.

3/16/2023 
CVPDC

40 of 49



CVPDC Title VI Implementation Plan 

24 | P a g e

Appendix F:  Discrimination Complaint Form 

The CVPDC Discrimination Complaint Form, available in print form and online on the CVPDC website at: 
https://cvpdc.org/resources/TitleVI, and on the CVPTPO website at: https://cvtrpo.org/title-vi.html. 

The CVPDC Discrimination Complaint Form can be submitted by email, by mail, or in person at 828 Main 
Street, Lynchburg, Virginia.   The Title VI Coordinator can assist the person in filing a complaint.  The 
CVPDC office can be reached Monday – Friday from 8:30 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. at (434) 845-3491, or by 
email at info@cvpdc.org. 

The CVPDC Discrimination Complaint Form begins on the next page. 

3/16/2023 
CVPDC

41 of 49

https://cvpdc.org/resources/TitleVI
https://cvtrpo.org/title-vi.html
mailto:info@cvpdc.org


CVPDC Title VI Implementation Plan 

25 | P a g e

Please use this form if you have a complaint alleging discrimination under Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 against the 
Central Virginia Planning District Commission (CVPDC), Central Virginia Transportation Planning Organization (CVTPO), or any of 
its programs, projects or sub-contractors.  

In order to process your Title VI complaint, please provide the following information.  Assistance is available upon request at the 
CVPDC office, Monday – Friday, 8:30 a.m. to 5:00 p.m., or by calling (434) 845-3491, or by email at cvpdc@info.org. 

Mail or deliver this completed form to:   
Central Virginia Planning District Commission 
C/O Title VI Coordinator 
828 Main Street, 12th Floor 
Lynchburg, VA 24503 

This form may also be filled out electronically at: to be added 

Section I: 

Name: 

Address: 

Telephone (Home): Telephone (Work): 

Email Address: 

Accessible Format 

Requirements? 

Large Print Audio Tape 

TDD Other 

Section II: 

Are you filing this complaint on your own behalf? Yes* No 

*If you answered "yes" to this question, go to Section III.

If not, please supply the name and relationship of the person 

for whom you are complaining:  

Please explain why you have filed for a third party: 

Please confirm that you have obtained the permission of the 

aggrieved party if you are filing on behalf of a third party.  

Yes No 

Title VI Discrimination 

Complaint Form  

3/16/2023 
CVPDC

42 of 49

mailto:cvpdc@info.org


CVPDC Title VI Implementation Plan 

26 | P a g e

Section III: 

I believe the discrimination I experienced was based on (check all that apply): 

[ ] Race [ ] Color [ ] National Origin 

Date of Alleged Discrimination (Month, Day, Year): __________ 

Explain as clearly as possible what happened and why you believe you were discriminated against. 

Describe all persons who were involved. Include the name and contact information of the person(s) who 

discriminated against you (if known) as well as names and contact information of any witnesses. If more 

space is needed, please use the back of this form. 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

Section IV 

Have you previously filed a Title VI complaint with this 

agency? 

Yes No 

Section V 

Have you filed this complaint with any other Federal, State, or local agency, or with any Federal or State 

court?  

[ ] Yes [ ] No 

If yes, check all that apply: 

[ ] Federal Agency:  

[ ] Federal Court  [ ] State Agency 

[ ] State Court  [ ] Local Agency 

Please provide information about a contact person at the agency/court where the complaint was filed. 

Name: 

Title: 

Agency: 

Address: 

Telephone: 

Section VI 

Name of agency complaint is against: 

3/16/2023 
CVPDC

43 of 49



CVPDC Title VI Implementation Plan 

27 | P a g e

Contact person: 

Title: 

Telephone number: 

You may attach any written materials or other information that you think is relevant to your complaint. 

Signature and date required below 
_____________________________________  ________________________ 

Signature    Date 

Please submit this form in person at the address below, or mail this form to: 

Kelly Hitchcock, Title VI Coordinator 
Central Virginia Planning District Commission  
828 Main Street, 12th Floor Lynchburg, Virginia 24504 
(434) 845 – 3491

3/16/2023 
CVPDC

44 of 49



CVPDC Title VI Implementation Plan 

28 | P a g e

Appendix G:  Resolutions of Adoption 

Pending CVPDC and CVTPO Resolutions of Adoption. 

3/16/2023 
CVPDC

45 of 49



 3/16/2023 
CVPDC

46 of 49



Page 1

Central Virginia Planning District Commission

Budget to Actual for FY22

FY 23

Approved

Budget

Actual

as of

02/28/2023

Balance of

Budget

Available

% of Budget

Used Y-T-D

OPERATIONS FUND (EXPENDITURES)

SALARY

ADMINISTRATION 156,162 116,317 39,845 74.48%

FINANCE 132,788 89,185 43,603 67.16%

OPERATIONS 269,154 89,766 179,388 33.35%

558,104 295,268 262,836 52.91%

PART TIME HELP 19,890 10,291 9,599 51.74%

Total Salaries & Wages 577,994 305,559 272,435 52.87%

EMPLOYER COST FICA 44,216 22,330 21,886 50.50%
EMPLOYER COST V R S 24,205 8,691 15,514 35.90%
EMPLOYER COST HEALTH INS 106,756 47,094 59,662 44.11%
EMPLOYER COST LIFE INS 7,733 3,837 3,896 49.62%
WORKERS COMP 1,900 1,148 752 60.42%
UNEMPLOYMENT COMPENSATION - 2,945 (2,945)

Total Fringe Benefits 184,810 86,045 101,710 46.56%

OFFICE EXPENSES
AUDITING SERVICES 7,000 6,000 1,000 85.71%
PAYROLL ACCOUNTING SERVICES 7,400 6,355 1,045 85.88%
LEGAL SERVICES 3,000 358 2,643 11.92%
LIABILITY INSURANCE 1,000 943 57 94.31%
CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 30,000 28,403 1,597 94.68%
ADVERTISING 1,500 - 1,500 0.00%
POSTAGE 500 255 245 51.01%
TELEPHONE 6,000 3,683 2,317 61.38%
INTERNET SERVICES 1,000 555 445 55.49%
OFFICE SUPPLIES 6,000 2,215 3,785 36.91%
PRINTING & BINDING 1,000 523 477 52.32%
TRAVEL 10,000 4,798 5,202 47.98%
SPECIAL MEETINGS 7,000 2,823 4,177 40.33%
EDUCATION & TRAINING 10,000 1,105 8,895 11.05%
DUES, SUBSCRIPTIONS 9,500 9,603 (103) 101.08%
PUBLICATIONS 500 - 500 0.00%
MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSES 1,000 - 1,000 0.00%
FURNITURE & FIXTURES 1,000 - 1,000 0.00%
RENTAL OFFICE EQUIPMENT 4,000 1,358 2,642 33.96%
OFFICE RENT 62,668 40,237 22,431 64.21%
PARKING 1,200 800 400 66.67%
COMPUTER EQUIP/SOFTWARE 12,000 10,760 1,240 89.67%

Total Office Expenses 183,268 120,774 62,494 65.90%

Total Operations Expenses 946,072 512,379 436,639 54.16%

Actual  as of  February 28, 2023

3/16/2023 
CVPDC

47 of 49



Page 2

Central Virginia Planning District Commission

Budget to Actual for FY22

Actual  as of  February 28, 2023

FY 23

Approved

Budget

Actual

as of

02/28/2023

Balance of

Budget

Available

% of Budget

Used Y-T-D

Total Operations Expenses (from Page 1) 946,072 512,379 436,639 54.16%

Direct Project Expenses

Altavista Comp Plan 1,055 123 932 11.64%
Appomattox Church Street Water Line 300 - 300 0.00%
Bedford Town  CDBG 2,000 106 1,894 5.28%
CEDS 49,000 - 49,000 0.00%
Brownfields Assessment - EPA 3,000 305 2,695 10.18%
CVCC-CTE GoVA 84,284 42,693 41,591 50.65%
Chesapeake Bay WIP III - DEQ 10,000 - 10,000 0.00%
DHCD 500 - 500 0.00%
DRPT / FTA 86,500 761 85,739 0.88%
Hilltop Revitalization Project - - - 
Regional Radio Board - Campbell County 1,000 2,000 (1,000) 200.00%
Regional Radio Board 1,000 368 632 36.82%
RideSolutions 9,875 73 9,802 0.74%
RideSolutions Mobility 9,600 - 9,600 0.00%
VDOT - PL 105,000 13,144 91,856 12.52%
VDOT - Rural 5,000 750 4,250 15.00%
Virginia Housing 550,000 - 550,000 0.00%
Virginia Housing Study Grant 96,000 38,295 57,705 39.89%
WIOA 544,004 228,641 315,363 42.03%

- - 
Total Direct Project Expenses 1,558,118 327,260 1,230,858 21.00%

TOTAL OPERATING & DIRECT PROJECT

EXPENSES $2,504,190 839,639 $1,667,497 33.53%

Pass Thru Expenses

Regional Radio Board 1,167,302 1,154,317 12,985 98.89%
VDOT - PL 75,000 - 75,000 0.00%

WIOA 950,000 831,606 118,394 87.54%

Total Pass Thru Expenses $2,192,302 1,985,922 $206,380 90.59%

Total Expenses $4,696,492 2,825,561 $1,873,876 60.16%

3/16/2023 
CVPDC

48 of 49



Page 3

Central Virginia Planning District Commission

Budget to Actual for FY22

Actual  as of  February 28, 2023

FY 23

Approved

Budget

Actual

as of

02/28/2023

Balance of

Budget

Available

% Of Budget

Received

Revenues

OPERATIONS FUND (REVENUE)

Dues 167,793 167,796 (3) 100.00%
Miscellaneous Revenue 11,000 0 11,000 0.00%

Total Operations Revenue 178,793 167,796 10,997 93.85%

Direct Project Revenues

Altavista Comprehensive Plan 10,542 - 10,542 0.00%
Appomattox Church Street Water Line 10,000 6,550 3,450 65.50%
Bedford Town CDBG (Hilltop) 12,500 6,650 5,850 53.20%
CEDS 30,000 - 30,000 0.00%
Brownfields - EPA 11,000 - 11,000 0.00%
Chesapeake Bay WIP III - DEQ 58,000 43,500 14,500 75.00%
DHCD 89,971 67,478 22,493 75.00%
DRPT / FTA 199,138 23,053 176,085 11.58%
Regional Radio Board - Campbell County 8,000 7,250 750 90.63%
Regional Radio Board 32,000 22,064 9,936 68.95%
Region 2000 Services Authority 175,000 107,419 67,581 61.38%
RideSolutions 50,882 19,410 31,472 38.15%
Ride Solutions Mobility 10,000 - 10,000 0.00%
VDOT-PL 179,579 71,401 108,178 39.76%
VDOT-Rural 58,000 29,068 28,932 50.12%
Virginia Housing 600,000 - 600,000 0.00%
Virginia Housing Study Grant 100,000 - 100,000 0.00%
WIOA 609,004 289,079 319,925 47.47%

Total Direct Project Revenues 2,243,616 692,922 1,550,694 30.88%

Interest 600 7,327 (6,727) 1221.16%

TOTAL OPERATIONS & DIRECT PROJECT

REVENUES 2,423,009 868,045 1,554,964 35.83%

Surplus/(Use of Fund) Balance (81,181) 28,406 (112,532) -34.99%

Funding from Fund Balance
CVCC-CTE 84,284 42,963 41,321 50.97%
CEDS 30,000 - 30,000 0.00%

Funding from Fund Balance 114,284 42,963 71,321 37.59%

$33,103 $71,369 ($41,211) 215.60%

Pass Thru Revenue
Regional Radio Board 1,239,343 1,114,122 125,221 89.90%

VDOT - PL 75,000 71,401 3,599 95.20%

WIOA 950,000 911,002 38,998 95.89%

Total Pass Thru Revenues $2,264,343 $2,096,524 $167,818 92.59%

Total Revenue 4,801,636 3,007,532 1,794,104 62.64%

Net Surplus/(Use of Fund) Balance 105,144 181,971 (76,827)

Local Government Investment Pool (LGIP) Balance 331,805
3/16/2023 
CVPDC

49 of 49


	CVPDC agenda 031623.pdf
	GO Virginia presenters.pdf
	GOVA R2 Speaker's Buearu Presentation.pdf
	Executive Committee Meeting Minutes-011223.pdf
	PDC Housing Development Program recommendation.pdf
	DRAFT CVPDC Title VI Plan 030823.pdf
	ME February 2023 Board Financials.pdf
	Budget




